
CoP19 Plen. Rec. 4 (Rev. 1) – p. 1 

Original language: English CoP19 Plen. Rec. 4 (Rev. 1) 

CONVENTION ON INTERNATIONAL TRADE IN ENDANGERED SPECIES 
OF WILD FAUNA AND FLORA 

____________________ 

 
 
 

Nineteenth meeting of the Conference of the Parties 
Panama City (Panama), 14 - 25 November 2022 

Summary record of the fourth plenary session  

25 November 2022: 9h10 – 14h20 

 Chairs: M. Concepción López (Panama) 
S. Binder (Panama) 

 
 Committee I Chair: V. Fleming (United Kingdom of Great Britain and 

Northern Ireland) 
 Committee II Chair: R. Ollerenshaw (Australia) 
 
 Secretariat: I. Higuero 
  T. Carroll 
  D. Morgan 
  J. C. Vasquez 
  
 Rapporteurs : A. Caromel 
  F. Davis 
  J. Gray 
  S. Rouse 
  R. Mackenzie 

J. Mark 
    
   
Relating to agenda item 36, Decisions 18.88, 18.89, 18.92 and 18.93 were deleted. 

Relating to agenda item 44.1, Decisions 18.135 to 18.139 were deleted. 

Species specific matters 

89. Proposals to amend Appendices I and II 

Discussion resumed on proposal CoP19 Prop. 4. Zimbabwe stated that it wished to reopen debate solely 
on annotation 2e) relating to trade in leather goods; it wished to be included in the range States allowed to 
trade in leather goods for commercial or non-commercial purposes along with Botswana, South Africa and 
Namibia, considering that uniformity of the annotation for southern African range States would ease 
implementation.  

The Central African Republic, Congo, Gabon, Israel, Liberia, Mali, Niger, Nigeria, Panama, Senegal and 
Togo opposed the proposed change, variously querying whether natural mortality would provide sufficient 
hides for the leather trade and stating their concern that further opening trade in leather products would 
incentivise hunting of younger elephants with higher quality skin.  

Botswana, China, the Democratic Republic of the Congo, Namibia and South Africa supported the amended 
proposal.  



CoP19 Plen. Rec. 4 (Rev. 1) – p. 2 

Zimbabwe called for a vote on the amended proposal. With 53 votes in favour, 48 against and 32 abstaining, 
the proposal to amend paragraph 2e) of the annotation to include Zimbabwe in the list of Parties allowed to 
trade in leather products for commercial purposes was rejected. 

The Chair of Committee I reported that the Committee had rejected proposal CoP19 Prop. 5 and an 
amended version of proposal CoP19 Prop. 13, each following a vote. Proposal CoP19 Prop. 5 and the 
amended version of proposal CoP19 Prop. 13 were rejected.  

Having been accepted by consensus in Committee I, the following proposals were adopted: CoP19 Prop. 
6, Prop. 7, Prop. 8 (Rev. 1), Prop. 10, Prop. 15, Prop. 16 (Rev. 1), Prop. 19, Prop. 20, Prop. 22 (Rev. 1), 
Prop. 24, Prop. 25 (Rev. 1), Prop. 26, Prop. 27, Prop. 28 (Rev. 1), Prop. 29, Prop. 30, Prop. 31, Prop. 
32, Prop. 33, Prop. 34, Prop. 35, Prop. 36 (Rev. 1), Prop. 38, Prop. 39, Prop. 43, Prop. 45, Prop. 50 and 
Prop. 51. As part of consideration of proposal CoP19 Prop. 35, the standard nomenclature reference 
detailed in document CoP19 Com. I Rec. 14 was adopted. Regarding proposal CoP19 Prop. 51, the use of 
'Plants of the World Online' as the standard nomenclatural reference for the genus Pterocarpus was adopted. 

Proposal CoP19 Prop. 46 had been agreed after a vote in Committee I with 95 votes in favour, 12 against 
and 17 abstentions. Gabon, with support from the Congo, proposed debate be reopened on the proposal to 
remove the species Afzelia bipindensis from the proposal. The Democratic Republic of the Congo and other 
Parties opposed the proposal. The Chair proceeded to a vote: with 30 in favour, 71 opposing and 38 
abstentions, the proposal to reopen debate was rejected. Proposal CoP19 Prop. 46 was adopted.  

Proposal CoP19 Prop. 9 (Rev. 1), as amended to add an annotation stating “the entry into effect in the 
inclusion in Appendix I delayed by 12 months”, had been agreed by Committee I by consensus and was 
adopted.  

Proposals CoP19 Prop. 11 and Prop. 12, both amended to add an annotation stating “ zero annual export 
quota for wild specimens traded for commercial purposes” had been agreed by Committee I by consensus 
and were adopted. 

Proposals CoP19 Prop. 14, Prop. 23 and Prop. 40 had been accepted by Committee I following votes and 
were adopted. As part of consideration of proposal CoP19 Prop. 40, a number of standard nomenclatural 
references for the family Rhinobatidae, as detailed in section 11 of document CoP19 Prop. 40, as accepted 
by Committee I, were adopted. 

The Chair of Committee I reported that proposals CoP19 Prop. 17 and Prop. 18 had been considered 
together; proposal CoP19 Prop. 18 (which included the species considered in proposal CoP19 Prop. 17), as 
accepted by Committee I, was adopted. 

The Conference of the Parties noted that proposal CoP19 Prop. 21 had been withdrawn.  

Proposal CoP19 Prop. 37, as amended to add an annotation stating “the entry into effect in the inclusion in 
Appendix II delayed by 12 months”, as accepted by Committee I following a vote, was adopted. Japan asked 
that the following statement be included in the record regarding proposal CoP19 Prop. 37:  

The inclusion of blue shark as a look-alike species in Appendix II is completely unreasonable and 
unscientific. Around 100,000 tons of blue shark are sustainably harvested annually in more than 60 
countries worldwide. In other words, blue shark is not a threatened or endangered species, but a 
fishery target species that can be sustainably used. Blue shark is an important commercially exploited 
aquatic species; local economy and livelihoods depend upon it. Therefore, Japan is deeply concerned 
that proposal CoP19 Prop. 37 could cause harmful socio-economic impacts such as threatening food 
security and sustainable fisheries development. 

Brazil requested to re-open the debate on proposal CoP19 Prop. 41, which had been rejected by 
Committee I after a vote. With 83 Parties in favour, 21 against and 31 abstentions, the debate was reopened, 
Brazil proposed an amendment to proposal CoP19 Prop. 41 to include Hypancistrus zebra in Appendix II 
with a zero quota for wild specimens for commercial purposes. Argentina, Chile, Congo, Guatemala, India, 
Indonesia, Israel, Malaysia, Mali, Mexico, Peru, Senegal, Suriname and Uruguay supported the proposal as 
amended. Proposal CoP19 Prop. 41 as amended was adopted by consensus.  

The Chair of Committee I reported that proposals CoP19 Prop. 42 (Rev. 1), Prop. 44 and Prop. 48 had 
been accepted by the Committee after having been amended and following votes. Proposal CoP19 Prop. 



CoP19 Plen. Rec. 4 (Rev. 1) – p. 3 

42 (Rev. 1) to include the genus Thelenota in Appendix II with the entry into effect of the inclusion in Appendix 
II delayed by 18 months was adopted. Proposal CoP19 Prop. 44 to include genera Handroanthus, 
Roseodendron and Tabebuia in Appendix II with annotation #17 and with the entry into effect of the inclusion 
in Appendix II delayed by 24 months was adopted. Proposal CoP19 Prop. 48 to include Dipteryx spp. in 
Appendix II, with an annotation stating ‘Logs, sawn wood, veneer sheets, plywood and transformed wood’, 
with the entry into effect of the inclusion in Appendix II delayed by 24 months, was adopted. 

Proposal CoP19 Prop. 47 had been rejected by Committee I, after an amended version of this proposal 
had been rejected following a vote with 30 Parties in favour, 55 against and 9 abstentions. Proposal CoP19 
Prop. 47 was rejected.  

Proposals CoP19 Prop. 49 and Prop. 52 had been accepted by consensus by Committee I after having 
been amended. Proposal CoP19 Prop. 49 to maintain Paubrasilia echinata in Appendix II with an amended 
annotation, as recorded in document CoP19 Com. I.6, was adopted. Proposal CoP19 Prop. 52 to amend 
annotation #4, as recorded in summary record CoP19 Com. I Rec. 14, had been accepted by consensus by 
Committee I and was adopted as amended. Five draft decisions in connection with Proposal CoP19 
Prop. 49, contained in document CoP19 Com. I.6, and four draft decisions in connection with Proposal 
CoP19 Prop. 52, contained in document CoP19 Com. I Rec. 14, were adopted. 

Administrative and financial matters 

4. Rules of the Procedure of the Conference of the Parties 

 4.1 Report of the Standing Committee 

This item had been introduced in the first meeting of the plenary, at which amendments to Rule 7.2 and 
Rule 25.5 proposed in document CoP19 Doc. 4.1 were adopted, and a conclusion on proposed 
amendments to Rule 25.6 in the same document had been deferred. The plenary addressed the 
proposed amendments to Rule 25.6 in the document. These were introduced by the Chair of the 
Standing Committee, who explained that there were four proposed changes to this rule. The three 
substantive amendments to Rule 25.6 contained in Annex 1 to document CoP19 Doc. 4.1 and a fourth 
consequential amendment in the first sentence of Rule 25.6. The consequential amendment, to replace 
“, and proposals made” with “or” after “Rule 24, paragraph 2” in the first sentence of Rule 25.6, was a 
result of the amendment that had already been agreed to Rule 25.5 and it was hoped therefore that this 
could be agreed by consensus. The Chair of the Standing Committee suggested that the plenary 
consider each proposed amendment to Rule 25.6 in turn. 

The Democratic Republic of the Congo, speaking also on behalf of 44 other Parties, echoed by India, 
strongly opposed the proposed amendments to Rule 25.6 particularly the one that would replace the 
word “least” with most where it occurs in the second sentence. It noted that, in the spirit of compromise, 
the 45 parties were prepared to accept the replacement of “, and proposals made” with “or” after “Rule 
24, paragraph 2” in the first sentence in Rule 25.6. Argentina, China, Japan, and Peru supported the 
Democratic Republic of the Congo. The European Union and its Member States, Israel, Senegal and 
the United States of the America supported the proposed amendments to Rule 25.6. The European 
Union and its Member States indicated that given the opposition to the proposed amendments they 
were willing to explore practical ways to progress the issue. 

The Chair noted that there was consensus to replace , and proposals made with or after “Rule 24, 
paragraph 2” in Rule 25.6, and this proposed change was adopted. She asked the Parties to consider 
the other proposed amendments. 

Canada highlighted the importance of consensus in relation to the Rules of Procedure and 
acknowledged that there was a difference of views among the Parties. It suggested revising Decision 
18.1 to direct the Standing Committee to hold further discussions on Rule 25.6 in the intersessional 
period. Canada suggested text for the revision of the Decision as follows: 

  18.1 (Rev. CoP19) With the support of the Secretariat, the Standing Committee shall review Rule 
7.2 a) and Rule 25.6 of the Rules of Procedure of the Conference of the Parties 
and propose amendments, as appropriate, to the 1920th meeting of the 
Conference of the Parties with the view to ensuring the effective conduct of 
meetings. 



CoP19 Plen. Rec. 4 (Rev. 1) – p. 4 

The Chair recommended the adoption of the revised decision, and this was supported by China and the 
United States. Indonesia suggested that it would be helpful to have more time to consult on the proposed 
changes. Israel was concerned that adopting Canada’s proposal would mean that the Conference of 
the Parties would face the same issues at its 20th meeting and suggested accepting the revisions to 
Rule 25.6 at this meeting, with the exception of the replacement of the word “least” with “most”. China 
proposed the text of a new draft decision directed to the Secretariat, and the Chair indicated that this 
proposal should be made in the Standing Committee.  

The Democratic Republic of the Congo suggested that, as there was no consensus, the proposal to 
amend Rule 25.6 should be put to a vote. Mexico and the United States sought clarification on the 
aspects of the proposed amendments to Rule 25.6 that would subject to a vote. In response to 
Indonesia’s repeated call for time for more consultations, the Chair pointed out that this had been the 
intent of the proposal to refer the matter to the Standing Committee for further discussion. In light of this, 
and recognizing that consultations were still needed, the Democratic Republic of the Congo withdrew 
its request for a vote. 

The Chair asked the Parties to accept Canada’s proposal to revise Decision 18.1, and this was adopted. 

 4.2 Proposed amendment to Rule 26 

The Chair recalled that this agenda item had been discussed in the first meeting of the Plenary and had 
been deferred. Zimbabwe, one of the proponents of document CoP19 Doc. 4.2, indicated that it would 
consult further on this item with a view to further discussion at the next meeting of the Conference of 
the Parties. It was agreed to close debate on this agenda item. 

90. Determination of the time and venue of the next regular meeting of the Conference of the Parties 

The Secretariat indicated that it had not yet been informed of any offers to host the next regular meeting of 
the Conference of the Parties, noting that the next meeting would be held in 2025. 

91.  Concluding remarks 

Ukraine stated that the unprovoked and unjustified full-scale invasion of the Russian Federation into 
Ukraine had destroyed habitats for thousands of species of wild fauna and flora, this having a negative 
impact on Ukraine’s effective implementation of the Convention. Ukraine expressed an interest in hosting 
a future CITES meeting. Their intervention was supported by the European Union and its Member States, 
the United States of America, the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland and New Zealand. 
The Russian Federation stated that they opposed the politization of all environmental instruments and 
strongly rejected the false accusation made by Ukraine and others in violation of international law. The 
Russian Federation reaffirmed its commitment to CITES and its full implementation. 

Closing remarks were made by representatives of non-governmental organizations, intergovernmental 
organizations, observing States and Parties, all expressing their appreciation for the Host Country, the 
Chairs of the Committees, the Secretariat, interpreters, translators and rapporteurs, and all others who 
had worked hard to make the meeting such a success. Her Excellency Ms. Janaina Tewaney Mencomo, 
Minister of Foreign Affairs of Panama expressed how proud her country had been to host CoP19, 
highlighting the importance of the decisions taken during that meeting for biodiversity.  

Mr. Carlos Manuel Rodríguez, CEO and Chairperson of the Global Environment Facility (GEF) highlighted 
the strategic importance of the GEF for the implementation of the Convention and called on Parties to 
work with their GEF national focal points to access its funding. The Secretary-General thanked all 
delegates and participants for contributing to a successful meeting, and reflected on the importance of the 
outcomes of the meeting in contributing to conservation and ensuring international trade in wildlife is 
sustainable, legal and traceable. She thanked the host country for hosting an outstanding meeting. 

His Excellency Mr. Milciades Concepción declared the 19th meeting of the Conference of the Parties 
closed.  

The meeting closed at 14h20. 



Motion Item 89 Prop 4 (Plen)  [25.11.2022 9:49:29 AM]

19th meeting of the Conference of the Parties
Panama City, 14 - 25 November 2022

Quorum: Yes > 66.66%
EU-Vote: block
YES: 52.48%

1 AFGHANISTAN Not Allowed
2 ALBANIA Not Allowed
3 ALGERIA NO
4 ANDORRA Not Allowed
5 ANGOLA NO
6 ANTIGUA AND BARBUDA Not Present
7 ARGENTINA NO
8 ARMENIA Not Allowed
9 AUSTRALIA NO
10 AZERBAIJAN Not Allowed
11 BAHAMAS ABST
12 BAHRAIN ABST
13 BANGLADESH NO
14 BARBADOS Not Allowed
15 BELARUS Not Allowed
16 BELGIUM YES (eu)
17 BELIZE NO
18 BENIN NO
19 BHUTAN ABST
20 BOLIVIA (PLURINATIONAL STATE OF) NO
21 BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA Not Allowed
22 BOTSWANA YES
23 BRAZIL ABST
24 BRUNEI DARUSSALAM Not Allowed
25 BULGARIA YES (eu)
26 BURKINA FASO NO
27 BURUNDI NO
28 CABO VERDE Not Allowed
29 CAMBODIA YES
30 CAMEROON YES
31 CANADA YES
32 CENTRAL AFRICAN REPUBLIC NO
33 CHAD Not Allowed
34 CHILE NO
35 CHINA YES
36 COLOMBIA ABST
37 COMOROS NO
38 CONGO NO
39 COSTA RICA NO
40 CÔTE D'IVOIRE ABST
41 CROATIA YES (eu)
42 CUBA YES
43 CYPRUS YES (eu)
44 CZECH REPUBLIC YES (eu)
45 DEMOCRATIC REPUBLIC OF THE CONGO YES
46 DENMARK YES (eu)
47 DJIBOUTI Not Allowed
48 DOMINICA Not Allowed
49 DOMINICAN REPUBLIC NO

1 of 4



Motion Item 89 Prop 4 (Plen)  [25.11.2022 9:49:29 AM]

19th meeting of the Conference of the Parties
Panama City, 14 - 25 November 2022

50 ECUADOR ABST
51 EGYPT NO
52 EL SALVADOR Not Present
53 EQUATORIAL GUINEA Not Allowed
54 ERITREA YES
55 ESTONIA YES (eu)
56 ESWATINI Not Present
57 ETHIOPIA NO
58 EUROPEAN UNION Voted
59 FIJI Present
60 FINLAND YES (eu)
61 FRANCE YES (eu)
62 GABON NO
63 GAMBIA NO
64 GEORGIA NO
65 GERMANY YES (eu)
66 GHANA NO
67 GREECE YES (eu)
68 GRENADA Not Allowed
69 GUATEMALA ABST
70 GUINEA NO
71 GUINEA-BISSAU NO
72 GUYANA ABST
73 HONDURAS NO
74 HUNGARY YES (eu)
75 ICELAND NO
76 INDIA ABST
77 INDONESIA ABST
78 IRAN (ISLAMIC REPUBLIC OF) Not Allowed
79 IRAQ Not Allowed
80 IRELAND YES (eu)
81 ISRAEL NO
82 ITALY YES (eu)
83 JAMAICA NO
84 JAPAN YES
85 JORDAN NO
86 KAZAKHSTAN Not Allowed
87 KENYA NO
88 KUWAIT ABST
89 KYRGYZSTAN Not Allowed
90 LAO PEOPLE'S DEMOCRATIC REPUBLIC ABST
91 LATVIA YES (eu)
92 LEBANON Not Allowed
93 LESOTHO YES
94 LIBERIA NO
95 LIBYA Not Allowed
96 LIECHTENSTEIN YES
97 LITHUANIA YES (eu)
98 LUXEMBOURG YES (eu)
99 MADAGASCAR YES
100 MALAWI YES
101 MALAYSIA YES
102 MALDIVES ABST

2 of 4



Motion Item 89 Prop 4 (Plen)  [25.11.2022 9:49:29 AM]

19th meeting of the Conference of the Parties
Panama City, 14 - 25 November 2022

103 MALI NO
104 MALTA YES (eu)
105 MAURITANIA NO
106 MAURITIUS Not Allowed
107 MEXICO YES
108 MONACO NO
109 MONGOLIA Not Allowed
110 MONTENEGRO ABST
111 MOROCCO NO
112 MOZAMBIQUE YES
113 MYANMAR Not Allowed
114 NAMIBIA YES
115 NEPAL ABST
116 NETHERLANDS YES (eu)
117 NEW ZEALAND NO
118 NICARAGUA Present
119 NIGER NO
120 NIGERIA NO
121 NORTH MACEDONIA Not Allowed
122 NORWAY YES
123 OMAN Not Allowed
124 PAKISTAN ABST
125 PALAU Not Allowed
126 PANAMA NO
127 PAPUA NEW GUINEA ABST
128 PARAGUAY Not Present
129 PERU ABST
130 PHILIPPINES NO
131 POLAND YES (eu)
132 PORTUGAL YES (eu)
133 QATAR Not Allowed
134 REPUBLIC OF AUSTRIA YES (eu)
135 REPUBLIC OF KOREA NO
136 REPUBLIC OF MOLDOVA Not Allowed
137 ROMANIA YES (eu)
138 RUSSIAN FEDERATION ABST
139 RWANDA Not Allowed
140 SAINT KITTS AND NEVIS Not Allowed
141 SAINT LUCIA Not Allowed
142 SAINT VINCENT AND THE GRENADINES Not Allowed
143 SAMOA NO
144 SAN MARINO Not Allowed
145 SAO TOME AND PRINCIPE Not Allowed
146 SAUDI ARABIA Not Allowed
147 SENEGAL NO
148 SERBIA Not Allowed
149 SEYCHELLES ABST
150 SIERRA LEONE ABST
151 SINGAPORE ABST
152 SLOVAKIA YES (eu)
153 SLOVENIA YES (eu)
154 SOLOMON ISLANDS ABST
155 SOMALIA Not Allowed

3 of 4



Motion Item 89 Prop 4 (Plen)  [25.11.2022 9:49:29 AM]

19th meeting of the Conference of the Parties
Panama City, 14 - 25 November 2022

156 SOUTH AFRICA YES
157 SPAIN YES (eu)
158 SRI LANKA ABST
159 SUDAN NO
160 SURINAME Not Present
161 SWEDEN YES (eu)
162 SWITZERLAND YES
163 SYRIAN ARAB REPUBLIC ABST
164 TAJIKISTAN ABST
165 THAILAND YES
166 TOGO NO
167 TONGA ABST
168 TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO Present
169 TUNISIA NO
170 TÜRKIYE NO
171 UGANDA YES
172 UKRAINE Present
173 UNITED ARAB EMIRATES ABST
174 UNITED KINGDOM OF GREAT BRITAIN AND NORTHERN IR ABST
175 UNITED REPUBLIC OF TANZANIA YES
176 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA ABST
177 URUGUAY NO
178 UZBEKISTAN Not Allowed
179 VANUATU ABST
180 VENEZUELA (BOLIVARIAN REPUBLIC OF) YES
181 VIET NAM Not Present
182 YEMEN Not Present
183 ZAMBIA YES
184 ZIMBABWE YES

4 of 4



Motion Item 89 Prop 41 (reopen)  [25.11.2022 10:31:47 AM]

19th meeting of the Conference of the Parties
Panama City, 14 - 25 November 2022

Quorum: Yes > 33.33%
EU-Vote: individual
YES: 79.81%

1 AFGHANISTAN Not Allowed
2 ALBANIA Not Allowed
3 ALGERIA YES
4 ANDORRA Not Allowed
5 ANGOLA ABST
6 ANTIGUA AND BARBUDA Not Present
7 ARGENTINA YES
8 ARMENIA Not Allowed
9 AUSTRALIA ABST
10 AZERBAIJAN Not Allowed
11 BAHAMAS Present
12 BAHRAIN YES
13 BANGLADESH ABST
14 BARBADOS Not Allowed
15 BELARUS Not Allowed
16 BELGIUM YES
17 BELIZE ABST
18 BENIN YES
19 BHUTAN Present
20 BOLIVIA (PLURINATIONAL STATE OF) YES
21 BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA Not Allowed
22 BOTSWANA NO
23 BRAZIL YES
24 BRUNEI DARUSSALAM Not Allowed
25 BULGARIA YES
26 BURKINA FASO NO
27 BURUNDI YES
28 CABO VERDE Not Allowed
29 CAMBODIA NO
30 CAMEROON YES
31 CANADA NO
32 CENTRAL AFRICAN REPUBLIC NO
33 CHAD Not Allowed
34 CHILE YES
35 CHINA NO
36 COLOMBIA YES
37 COMOROS Not Present
38 CONGO YES
39 COSTA RICA YES
40 CÔTE D'IVOIRE NO
41 CROATIA YES
42 CUBA YES
43 CYPRUS YES
44 CZECH REPUBLIC YES
45 DEMOCRATIC REPUBLIC OF THE CONGO YES
46 DENMARK YES
47 DJIBOUTI Not Allowed
48 DOMINICA Not Allowed
49 DOMINICAN REPUBLIC YES

1 of 4



Motion Item 89 Prop 41 (reopen)  [25.11.2022 10:31:47 AM]

19th meeting of the Conference of the Parties
Panama City, 14 - 25 November 2022

50 ECUADOR YES
51 EGYPT ABST
52 EL SALVADOR YES
53 EQUATORIAL GUINEA Not Allowed
54 ERITREA YES
55 ESTONIA YES
56 ESWATINI Not Present
57 ETHIOPIA ABST
58 EUROPEAN UNION Present
59 FIJI YES
60 FINLAND YES
61 FRANCE YES
62 GABON YES
63 GAMBIA YES
64 GEORGIA NO
65 GERMANY YES
66 GHANA YES
67 GREECE YES
68 GRENADA Not Allowed
69 GUATEMALA YES
70 GUINEA YES
71 GUINEA-BISSAU YES
72 GUYANA ABST
73 HONDURAS NO
74 HUNGARY YES
75 ICELAND ABST
76 INDIA YES
77 INDONESIA Present
78 IRAN (ISLAMIC REPUBLIC OF) Not Allowed
79 IRAQ Not Allowed
80 IRELAND YES
81 ISRAEL YES
82 ITALY YES
83 JAMAICA ABST
84 JAPAN NO
85 JORDAN ABST
86 KAZAKHSTAN Not Allowed
87 KENYA YES
88 KUWAIT YES
89 KYRGYZSTAN Not Allowed
90 LAO PEOPLE'S DEMOCRATIC REPUBLIC ABST
91 LATVIA YES
92 LEBANON Not Allowed
93 LESOTHO YES
94 LIBERIA ABST
95 LIBYA Not Allowed
96 LIECHTENSTEIN NO
97 LITHUANIA YES
98 LUXEMBOURG YES
99 MADAGASCAR YES
100 MALAWI ABST
101 MALAYSIA NO
102 MALDIVES YES

2 of 4



Motion Item 89 Prop 41 (reopen)  [25.11.2022 10:31:47 AM]

19th meeting of the Conference of the Parties
Panama City, 14 - 25 November 2022

103 MALI YES
104 MALTA YES
105 MAURITANIA YES
106 MAURITIUS Not Allowed
107 MEXICO YES
108 MONACO YES
109 MONGOLIA Not Allowed
110 MONTENEGRO ABST
111 MOROCCO ABST
112 MOZAMBIQUE YES
113 MYANMAR Not Allowed
114 NAMIBIA ABST
115 NEPAL NO
116 NETHERLANDS YES
117 NEW ZEALAND YES
118 NICARAGUA ABST
119 NIGER YES
120 NIGERIA YES
121 NORTH MACEDONIA Not Allowed
122 NORWAY ABST
123 OMAN Not Allowed
124 PAKISTAN ABST
125 PALAU Not Allowed
126 PANAMA YES
127 PAPUA NEW GUINEA ABST
128 PARAGUAY Not Present
129 PERU YES
130 PHILIPPINES NO
131 POLAND YES
132 PORTUGAL YES
133 QATAR Not Allowed
134 REPUBLIC OF AUSTRIA YES
135 REPUBLIC OF KOREA ABST
136 REPUBLIC OF MOLDOVA Not Allowed
137 ROMANIA YES
138 RUSSIAN FEDERATION NO
139 RWANDA Not Allowed
140 SAINT KITTS AND NEVIS Not Allowed
141 SAINT LUCIA Not Allowed
142 SAINT VINCENT AND THE GRENADINES Not Allowed
143 SAMOA NO
144 SAN MARINO Not Allowed
145 SAO TOME AND PRINCIPE Not Allowed
146 SAUDI ARABIA Not Allowed
147 SENEGAL YES
148 SERBIA Not Allowed
149 SEYCHELLES ABST
150 SIERRA LEONE ABST
151 SINGAPORE NO
152 SLOVAKIA YES
153 SLOVENIA YES
154 SOLOMON ISLANDS YES
155 SOMALIA Not Allowed

3 of 4



Motion Item 89 Prop 41 (reopen)  [25.11.2022 10:31:47 AM]

19th meeting of the Conference of the Parties
Panama City, 14 - 25 November 2022

156 SOUTH AFRICA NO
157 SPAIN YES
158 SRI LANKA ABST
159 SUDAN NO
160 SURINAME YES
161 SWEDEN YES
162 SWITZERLAND NO
163 SYRIAN ARAB REPUBLIC ABST
164 TAJIKISTAN ABST
165 THAILAND YES
166 TOGO YES
167 TONGA YES
168 TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO Present
169 TUNISIA ABST
170 TÜRKIYE YES
171 UGANDA NO
172 UKRAINE ABST
173 UNITED ARAB EMIRATES YES
174 UNITED KINGDOM OF GREAT BRITAIN AND NORTHERN IR YES
175 UNITED REPUBLIC OF TANZANIA ABST
176 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA YES
177 URUGUAY YES
178 UZBEKISTAN Not Allowed
179 VANUATU YES
180 VENEZUELA (BOLIVARIAN REPUBLIC OF) YES
181 VIET NAM Not Present
182 YEMEN ABST
183 ZAMBIA ABST
184 ZIMBABWE YES

4 of 4



Motion Item 89 Prop 46 (reopen)  [25.11.2022 10:54:17 AM]

19th meeting of the Conference of the Parties
Panama City, 14 - 25 November 2022

Quorum: Yes > 33.33%
EU-Vote: individual
YES: 29.70%

1 AFGHANISTAN Not Allowed
2 ALBANIA Not Allowed
3 ALGERIA ABST
4 ANDORRA Not Allowed
5 ANGOLA NO
6 ANTIGUA AND BARBUDA Not Present
7 ARGENTINA NO
8 ARMENIA Not Allowed
9 AUSTRALIA NO
10 AZERBAIJAN Not Allowed
11 BAHAMAS ABST
12 BAHRAIN ABST
13 BANGLADESH NO
14 BARBADOS Not Allowed
15 BELARUS Not Allowed
16 BELGIUM NO
17 BELIZE NO
18 BENIN NO
19 BHUTAN ABST
20 BOLIVIA (PLURINATIONAL STATE OF) NO
21 BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA Not Allowed
22 BOTSWANA NO
23 BRAZIL ABST
24 BRUNEI DARUSSALAM Not Allowed
25 BULGARIA NO
26 BURKINA FASO ABST
27 BURUNDI YES
28 CABO VERDE Not Allowed
29 CAMBODIA NO
30 CAMEROON YES
31 CANADA NO
32 CENTRAL AFRICAN REPUBLIC NO
33 CHAD Not Allowed
34 CHILE NO
35 CHINA NO
36 COLOMBIA ABST
37 COMOROS YES
38 CONGO YES
39 COSTA RICA YES
40 CÔTE D'IVOIRE NO
41 CROATIA NO
42 CUBA YES
43 CYPRUS NO
44 CZECH REPUBLIC NO
45 DEMOCRATIC REPUBLIC OF THE CONGO NO
46 DENMARK NO
47 DJIBOUTI Not Allowed
48 DOMINICA Not Allowed
49 DOMINICAN REPUBLIC NO

1 of 4



Motion Item 89 Prop 46 (reopen)  [25.11.2022 10:54:17 AM]

19th meeting of the Conference of the Parties
Panama City, 14 - 25 November 2022

50 ECUADOR ABST
51 EGYPT YES
52 EL SALVADOR NO
53 EQUATORIAL GUINEA Not Allowed
54 ERITREA YES
55 ESTONIA NO
56 ESWATINI Not Present
57 ETHIOPIA YES
58 EUROPEAN UNION Present
59 FIJI YES
60 FINLAND NO
61 FRANCE NO
62 GABON YES
63 GAMBIA YES
64 GEORGIA ABST
65 GERMANY NO
66 GHANA YES
67 GREECE NO
68 GRENADA Not Allowed
69 GUATEMALA ABST
70 GUINEA YES
71 GUINEA-BISSAU YES
72 GUYANA ABST
73 HONDURAS NO
74 HUNGARY NO
75 ICELAND ABST
76 INDIA ABST
77 INDONESIA ABST
78 IRAN (ISLAMIC REPUBLIC OF) Not Allowed
79 IRAQ Not Allowed
80 IRELAND NO
81 ISRAEL ABST
82 ITALY NO
83 JAMAICA ABST
84 JAPAN ABST
85 JORDAN ABST
86 KAZAKHSTAN Not Allowed
87 KENYA YES
88 KUWAIT ABST
89 KYRGYZSTAN Not Allowed
90 LAO PEOPLE'S DEMOCRATIC REPUBLIC NO
91 LATVIA NO
92 LEBANON Not Allowed
93 LESOTHO NO
94 LIBERIA YES
95 LIBYA Not Allowed
96 LIECHTENSTEIN NO
97 LITHUANIA NO
98 LUXEMBOURG NO
99 MADAGASCAR YES
100 MALAWI NO
101 MALAYSIA YES
102 MALDIVES ABST

2 of 4



Motion Item 89 Prop 46 (reopen)  [25.11.2022 10:54:17 AM]

19th meeting of the Conference of the Parties
Panama City, 14 - 25 November 2022

103 MALI NO
104 MALTA NO
105 MAURITANIA NO
106 MAURITIUS Not Allowed
107 MEXICO YES
108 MONACO NO
109 MONGOLIA Not Allowed
110 MONTENEGRO Not Present
111 MOROCCO ABST
112 MOZAMBIQUE YES
113 MYANMAR Not Allowed
114 NAMIBIA NO
115 NEPAL ABST
116 NETHERLANDS NO
117 NEW ZEALAND NO
118 NICARAGUA ABST
119 NIGER YES
120 NIGERIA YES
121 NORTH MACEDONIA Not Allowed
122 NORWAY ABST
123 OMAN Not Allowed
124 PAKISTAN ABST
125 PALAU Not Allowed
126 PANAMA ABST
127 PAPUA NEW GUINEA NO
128 PARAGUAY YES
129 PERU ABST
130 PHILIPPINES NO
131 POLAND NO
132 PORTUGAL NO
133 QATAR Not Allowed
134 REPUBLIC OF AUSTRIA NO
135 REPUBLIC OF KOREA YES
136 REPUBLIC OF MOLDOVA Not Allowed
137 ROMANIA NO
138 RUSSIAN FEDERATION NO
139 RWANDA Not Allowed
140 SAINT KITTS AND NEVIS Not Allowed
141 SAINT LUCIA Not Allowed
142 SAINT VINCENT AND THE GRENADINES Not Allowed
143 SAMOA ABST
144 SAN MARINO Not Allowed
145 SAO TOME AND PRINCIPE Not Allowed
146 SAUDI ARABIA Not Allowed
147 SENEGAL NO
148 SERBIA Not Allowed
149 SEYCHELLES ABST
150 SIERRA LEONE ABST
151 SINGAPORE NO
152 SLOVAKIA NO
153 SLOVENIA NO
154 SOLOMON ISLANDS YES
155 SOMALIA Not Allowed

3 of 4



Motion Item 89 Prop 46 (reopen)  [25.11.2022 10:54:17 AM]

19th meeting of the Conference of the Parties
Panama City, 14 - 25 November 2022

156 SOUTH AFRICA NO
157 SPAIN NO
158 SRI LANKA ABST
159 SUDAN YES
160 SURINAME ABST
161 SWEDEN NO
162 SWITZERLAND NO
163 SYRIAN ARAB REPUBLIC ABST
164 TAJIKISTAN Present
165 THAILAND YES
166 TOGO YES
167 TONGA ABST
168 TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO ABST
169 TUNISIA ABST
170 TÜRKIYE NO
171 UGANDA NO
172 UKRAINE ABST
173 UNITED ARAB EMIRATES ABST
174 UNITED KINGDOM OF GREAT BRITAIN AND NORTHERN IR NO
175 UNITED REPUBLIC OF TANZANIA NO
176 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA NO
177 URUGUAY NO
178 UZBEKISTAN Not Allowed
179 VANUATU NO
180 VENEZUELA (BOLIVARIAN REPUBLIC OF) NO
181 VIET NAM Not Present
182 YEMEN YES
183 ZAMBIA NO
184 ZIMBABWE NO

4 of 4


	E-CoP19-Plen-Rec-04-R1.pdf
	Plen 4 Item 89 Prop 4 (Plen).pdf
	Plen 4 Item 89 Prop 41 (reopen).pdf
	Plen 4 Item 89 Prop 46 (reopen).pdf

